
NEVADA STATE  
BOARD OF PHARMACY 

 
 

BOARD MEETING 
 
 

December 4-5, 2019 
 

HYATT PLACE 
1790 E PLUMB LN 

RENO, NEVADA 

1



2



3



4



5



6



7



8



9



10



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1

11



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2

12



3

13



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4

14



 

NEVADA STATE BOARD OF PHARMACY 

985 Damonte Ranch Pkwy, Ste 206, Reno, NV 89521 

(775) 850-1440  •  1-800-364-2081  •  FAX  (775) 850-1444 

•  Web Page: bop.nv.gov 

 

 
 
 

MINUTES 
 

October 9-10, 2019 
 

BOARD MEETING 
 

Hilton Garden Inn 
7830 S. Las Vegas Boulevard 

Las Vegas, Nevada 
 
Board Members Present: 
 
Kevin Desmond Jade Jacobo  Wayne Mitchell 
Melissa Shake  Robert Sullivan Gener Tejero    
 
Board Staff Present: 
 
Dave Wuest  Paul Edwards Brett Kandt  Shirley Hunting  
Ken Scheuber Luis Curras  Dena McClish Leo Basch 
Justin Taruc  Kristopher Mangosing 
 
Presiding Officer Desmond read the mission statement of the Nevada State Board of 
Pharmacy to reiterate the Board’s duty to carry out and enforce the provisions of Nevada 
Law to protect the health, safety, and welfare of the public. 
 
Mr. Wuest announced that Jason Penrod has resigned from his position as President of the 
Nevada State Board of Pharmacy and stated that Kevin Desmond would be acting as the 
Presiding Officer. 
 
1. Public Comment October 9, 2019 9:00 AM 
 
There was no public comment. 
 
2. Approval of September 4-5, 2019, Minutes   
 
Board Action:  
 
Motion: Robert Sullivan moved to approve the September 4-5, 2019 Meeting Minutes 

as presented. 
 

15



2 

 

Second: Melissa Shake  
 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 
3. Applications for Out-of-State Pharmacy – Non Appearance  
 

A. 866 East Tremont Pharmacy LLC/Boca Pharmacy – Bronx, NY 
B. AHF Pharmacy – Fort Lauderdale, FL 
C. Berkley Pharmacy LLC – Warren, MI 
D. CVS/pharmacy #11340 – Plantation, FL 
E. CVS/specialty #48640 – Boise, ID 
F. KnippeRx Inc. – Charlestown, IN 
G. Millennium Pharmacy – Mt. Juliet, TN 
H. OptumRx – Oklahoma City, OK 
I. Rochester Health Mart Pharmacy – Rochester, PA 
J. Xpresso Pharmacy Inc. – Miramar, FL 

 
 Applications for Out-of-State Compounding Pharmacy – Non Appearance 
  

K. Community, A Walgreens Pharmacy #21213 – Glendale, AZ 
 L. Crestview Pharmacy – Crestview, FL 
 M. Family Pharmacy – Sarasota, FL 
 N. Gem Drugs – Reserve, LA 

 
Applications for Out-of-State Medical, Devices, Equipment and Gases – Non  
Appearance   
 
O. APM Medical Supplies – Rockwall, TX 
P. Bridgewater Health Supplies LLC – Oyster Bay, NY 
Q. Cala Health, Inc. – Burlingame, CA 
R. Care Concepts, Inc. – Van Nuys, CA 
S. Energy Workers Medical Services, LLC – Fork, UT 
T. Good Night Medical – Columbus, OH 
U. Prollenium US Inc. – Raleigh, NC 
V. Sawtooth Orthotics & Prosthetics, Inc. – Boise, ID 
W. TLC Medical Supplies – Los Angeles, CA 
 
Application for Nevada Ambulatory Surgery Center – Non Appearance   
 
X. Visionary Surgery Center of Nevada – Reno, NV 
 
Application for Nevada Pharmacy – Non Appearance   
 
Y. CVS Specialty – Las Vegas, NV 

 
Melissa Shake recused from participation regarding Item 3K due to her employment. 
 
Jade Jacobo recused from participation regarding Item 3H due to her employment. 

16



3 

 

 
Board discussion ensued regarding Item 3L’s products and services provided specifically if 
3L would be shipping vaccines and immunization products into Nevada. 
 
Board Action:  
 
Motion: Jade Jacobo moved to approve the Consent Agenda except for Items 3K, 3H 

and 3L. 
 
Second: Robert Sullivan 
 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 
Board Action:  
 
Motion: Melissa Shake moved to approve Item 3H. 
 
Second: Gener Tejero 
 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 
Board Action:  
 
Motion: Jade Jacobo moved to approve Item 3K. 
 
Second: Robert Sullivan 
 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 
Leo Basch, Inspector Nevada State Board of Pharmacy, appeared and was sworn by 
Presiding Officer Desmond prior to offering testimony or answering questions. 
 
Mr. Basch explained that he contacted Item 3L (Crestview Pharmacy).  He stated that he was 
unable to determine if Crestview Pharmacy was shipping vaccines and immunization 
products into Nevada. 
 
Board Action:  
 
Motion: Jade Jacobo moved to have Board Staff contact Crestview Pharmacy and 

determine if they are shipping vaccine and immunization products into Nevada.  
Board Staff is authorized to determine if Crestview Pharmacy can be brought 
before the Board on the Consent Agenda or for appearance. 

 
Second: Melissa Shake 
 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 
4. Discipline 

17



4 

 

 
A. Ravi Ramanathan, MD      15-047-CS-A-S 
B. Beraldo Vazquez-Correa, MD     15-047-CS-B-S 
C. Joshua Smith, PA       15-047-CS-C-S 
D. Yaakov Dovid Kotlarsky, PA     15-047-CS-D-S 
E. Jennifer Lauren Relph, PA      15-047-CS-E-S 

 
Ravi Ramanathan, Beraldo Vazquez-Correa, Joshua Smith, Yaakov Kotlarsky and Jennifer 
Relph were not present. 
 
Kathleen Janssen was present as counsel for Jennifer Relph. 
 
Mr. Edwards summarized the facts of the case where in July and August 2015, Dr. 
Ramanathan owned and/or operated a medical clinic called Family Doctors of Green Valley.  
Dr. Ramanathan held a controlled substance registration and dispensing practitioner 
registration at that time.  Dr. Vazquez-Correa and physician’s assistants Smith, Kotlarsky and 
Relph were licensed practitioners who worked at the clinic.  Vazquez-Correa, Smith, 
Kotlarsky and Relph each held a controlled substance registration, but none of them held a 
dispensing practitioner registration at the time.   
 
Mr. Edwards explained that Dr. Ramanathan instructed and allowed Vazquez-Correa, Smith, 
Kotlarsky and Relph to each write prescriptions using their own name, and then fill their 
patients’ prescriptions using Dr. Ramanathan’s dispensing practitioner registration and using 
prescription drugs from Dr. Ramanathan’s prescription drug inventory. 
 
Mr. Edwards stated that between July 24, 2015, and August 10, 2015, Vazquez-Correa, 
Smith, Kotlarsky, and Relph wrote a total of 213 prescriptions for controlled substances.  
They dispensed prescription drugs to fill those 213 prescriptions from Dr. Ramanathan’s 
inventory in his absence.   
 
Mr. Edwards stated that Vazquez-Correa, Smith, Kotlarsky and Relph reported to the 
Prescription Monitoring Program that Dr. Ramanathan wrote and dispensed each of those 
213 prescriptions. 
 
Mr. Edwards stated that Dr. Ramanathan failed to keep record of his opening inventory of 
controlled substances, and could not produce that record when requested during and 
inspection in August 2014. 
 
Mr. Edwards explained that during an audit of Dr. Ramanathan’s controlled substance 
inventory by the Drug Enforcement Agency (DEA) in 2015, the DEA found a variance of 
83,241 tablets/capsules between the inventory that Dr. Ramanathan purchased, and the 
inventory that he could account for at the time of the audit. 
 
Mr. Edwards requested the Board withdraw the Second Cause of Action regarding Dr. 
Ramanathan and withdraw paragraph 7 of the Accusation. 
 
Mr. Edwards presented a Stipulation and Order regarding Dr. Ramanthan. 
 

18



5 

 

Dr. Ramanthan’s controlled substance registration shall be revoked for one year and the 
revocation stayed effective immediately.  Dr. Ramanthan shall receive a Letter of Reprimand 
and shall dismiss any cases against the Nevada State Board of Pharmacy.  Dr. Ramanthan 
shall pay a $3,000 fine and a $1,500 administrative fee.  Dr. Ramanathan shall establish and 
put into practice policies and procedures to ensure the proper licensure of all persons 
employed by him or working under his supervision, to ensure that all controlled substances 
and dangerous drugs in his possession or control are properly stored and accessed, and to 
ensure that he and his staff comply with all state and federal laws.  Dr Ramanathan shall 
provide a copy of his policies and procedures to Board Staff within 30 days. 
 
Board Action:  
 
Motion: Jade Jacobo moved to accept the Stipulation and Order regarding Dr. 

Ramanathan with the withdrawal of the Second Cause of Action and paragraph 
7. 

 
Second: Gener Tejero  
 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 
Mr. Edwards presented a Stipulation and Order regarding Jennifer Relph. 
 
Ms. Relph shall receive a Letter of Reprimand, pay a $500 fine, pay a $500 administrative 
fee, and shall dismiss any cases against the Nevada State Board of Pharmacy. 
 
Ms. Janssen had no objections to the Stipulation and Order presented and thanked the 
Board and Board Staff for their time. 
 
Board Action:  
 
Motion: Jade Jacobo moved to accept the Stipulation and Order regarding Jennifer 

Relph. 
 
Second: Melissa Shake 
 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 
Mr. Edwards presented a Stipulation and Order regarding Dr. Vazquez-Correa. 
 
Dr. Vazquez-Correa shall receive a Letter of Reprimand, pay a $500 fine, pay a $500 
administrative fee, and shall dismiss any cases against the Nevada State Board of 
Pharmacy. 
 
Board Action:  
 
Motion: Jade Jacobo moved to accept the Stipulation and Order regarding Beraldo 

Vazquez-Correa. 
 

19



6 

 

Second: Melissa Shake 
 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 
Mr. Edwards presented a Stipulation and Order regarding Joshua Smith. 
 
Mr. Smith shall receive a Letter of Reprimand, pay a $500 fine, pay a $500 administrative 
fee, and shall dismiss any cases against the Nevada State Board of Pharmacy. 
 
Board Action:  
 
Motion: Melissa Shake moved to accept the Stipulation and Order regarding Joshua 

Smith. 
 
Second: Robert Sullivan  
 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 
Mr. Edwards presented a Stipulation and Order regarding Yaakov Kotlarsky. 
 
Mr. Kotlarsky shall receive a Letter of Reprimand, pay a $500 fine, pay a $500 administrative 
fee, and shall dismiss any cases against the Nevada State Board of Pharmacy. 
 
Board Action:  
 
Motion: Melissa Shake moved to accept the Stipulation and Order regarding Yaakov 

Kotlarsky. 
 
Second: Robert Sullivan  
 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 

F. Orlandis L. Wells, MD      19-211-CS-S 
 
Gener Tejero recused from participation in this matter due to his employment.  Orlandis 
Wells is the Medical Director at Las Vegas Infusion Pharmacy. 
 
Dr. Wells was not present. 
 
Mr. Edwards summarized the facts of the case where Dr. Wells had surrendered his DEA 
Registration for cause. 
 
Mr. Edwards presented a Stipulation and Order for the Board’s consideration. 
 
Dr. Wells agrees to surrender his Controlled Substance Registration. 
 
Board Action:  
 

20



7 

 

Motion: Jade Jacobo moved to accept Dr. Well’s voluntary surrender of his Controlled 
Substance Registration. 

 
Second: Wayne Mitchell 
 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 

G. Allied 100, LLC       19-150-WH 
 
Bridgette Kelly was present as counsel representing Allied 100, LLC. 
 
Mr. Kandt summarized the facts of the case where Board Staff contacted Allied 100, LLC in 
May 2019 requesting the company to comply with requirements of NRS 639.500 and submit 
a current list of officers/directors and a fingerprint card from each officer/director with written 
permission authorizing the Board to forward those fingerprints to the Central Repository for 
Nevada Records of Criminal History.  Mr. Kandt stated that Board Staff attempted to contact 
Allied 100, LLC again in July 2019, but still has not received the current list of 
officers/directors and fingerprint cards. 
 
Ms. Kelly explained that Allied 100, LLC was VAWD accredited in 2016 and started the 
process of re-accrediting in May 2019.  Ms. Kelly stated that Allied 100, LLC did not receive 
the first notice, but did receive the second notice. 
 
Mr. Kandt moved to have Exhibit 1 admitted into the record. 
 
Presiding Officer Desmond admitted Exhibit 1 into the record. 
 
Mr. Kandt presented Exhibit 1 which was an email from Allied 100, LLC to Board Staff.  
 
Board Action:  
 
Motion: Jade Jacobo moved that the Board has jurisdiction over this matter and that the 

Findings of Fact (Paragraphs 1-4) are true. 
 
Second: Melissa Shake 
 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 
Board Action:  
 
Motion: Melissa Shake moved to find that the Findings of Fact (Paragraphs 1,6 and 7) 

are true. 
 
Second: Jade Jacobo 
 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 

21



8 

 

Mr. Kandt stated that Board Staff recommends an Order, not considered as discipline, 
directing the Respondent to provide a current list of officers/directors, fingerprint cards and 
authorization within twenty days. 
 
Board Action:  
 
Motion: Melissa Shake moved that Allied 100, LLC provide Board Staff with a list of 

current officers/directors, fingerprint cards and authorization allowing the Board 
to forward those fingerprints to the Central Repository for Nevada Records of 
Criminal History within twenty days.  This Order is not considered discipline. 

 
Second: Jade Jacobo 
 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 

H. Americares Foundation, Inc.     19-151-WH 
 
Bridgette Kelly was present as counsel representing Americares Foundation, Inc. 
 
Mr. Kandt summarized the facts of the case where Board Staff contacted Americares 
Foundation, Inc in May 2019 requesting the company to comply with requirements of NRS 
639.500 and submit a current list of officers/directors and a fingerprint card from each 
officer/director with written permission authorizing the Board to forward those fingerprints to 
the Central Repository for Nevada Records of Criminal History.  Mr. Kandt stated that Board 
Staff attempted to contact Americares Foundation, again in July 2019, but still has not 
received the current list of officers/directors and fingerprint cards. 
 
Ms. Kelly stated that Americares Foundation, Inc received an email from Carolyn Cramer, 
past Board General Counsel, stating that the company was exempt from providing the list of 
officers/directors and fingerprint cards.   
 
After discussion, Mr. Wuest stated that Ms. Cramer did not have authorization to exempt 
Americares Foundation, Inc from complying with the requirements. 
 
Board Action:  
 
Motion: Melissa Shake moved that the Findings of Fact (Paragraphs 1-4) are true. 
 
Second: Wayne Mitchell 
 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 
Board Action:  
 
Motion: Melissa Shake moved that the Board has jurisdiction over this matter and that 

Findings of Fact (Paragraphs 1,6 and 7) are true. 
 
Second: Jade Jacobo 

22



9 

 

 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 
Mr. Kandt stated that Board Staff recommends an Order, not considered as discipline, 
directing the Respondent to provide a current list of officers/directors, fingerprint cards and 
authorization within twenty days. 
 
Ms. Kelly stated that Americares Foundation Inc has 22 directors and 9 officers, and 
requested the Board allow for more than twenty days to comply with the Order. 
 
Board Action:  
 
Motion: Jade Jacobo moved that Americares Foundation Inc. shall provide Board Staff 

with a list of current officers/directors, fingerprint cards and authorization 
allowing the Board to forward those fingerprints to the Central Repository for 
Nevada Records of Criminal History within twenty days.  This Order is not 
considered discipline. 

 
Second: Gener Tejero 
 
Aye:  Jacobo, Mitchell, Sullivan, Tejero 
Nay:  Shake 
 
Action: Motion carries 
 

I. Bio Comp Pharma, Inc.      19-154-WH 
 
No representative from Bio Comp Pharma, Inc. was present. 
 
Mr. Kandt summarized the facts of the case where Board Staff contacted Bio Comp Pharma, 
Inc.in May 2019 requesting the company to comply with requirements of NRS 639.500 and 
submit a current list of officers/directors and a fingerprint card from each officer/director with 
written permission authorizing the Board to forward those fingerprints to the Central 
Repository for Nevada Records of Criminal History.  Mr. Kandt stated that Board Staff 
attempted to contact Bio Comp Pharma, Inc., again in July 2019, but still has not received 
the current list of officers/directors and fingerprint cards. 
 
Mr. Kandt called Shirley Hunting as a witness. 
 
Shirley Hunting, Board Coordinator Nevada State Board of Pharmacy, appeared and was 
sworn by Presiding Officer Desmond prior to answering questions or offering testimony. 
 
Ms. Hunting testified that she sent Bio Comp Pharma, Inc. the Notice of Intended Action and 
Accusation by certified mail.  Ms. Hunting reviewed documentation showing that Bio Comp 
Pharma, Inc. was properly served at their address of record. 
 
Mr. Kandt moved to have Exhibit 1 admitted into the record. 
 

23



10 

 

Mr. Kandt presented Exhibit 1, documentation that Board Staff properly served Bio Comp 
Pharma, Inc.  
 
Board Action:  
 
Motion: Melissa Shake moved that Board Staff properly served Bio Comp Pharma, Inc. 

and that the Findings of Fact (Paragraphs 1-4) are true. 
 
Second: Jade Jacobo 
 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 
Board Action:  
 
Motion: Melissa Shake moved that Findings of Fact (Paragraphs 6-7) are true. 
 
Second: Robert Sullivan  
 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 
Board Action:  
 
Motion: Melissa Shake moved that Bio Comp Pharma, Inc. shall provide Board Staff 

with a list of current officers/directors, fingerprint cards and authorization 
allowing the Board to forward those fingerprints to the Central Repository for 
Nevada Records of Criminal History within twenty days.  This Order is not 
considered discipline. 

 
Second: Robert Sullivan  
 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 

J. Breg, Inc.        19-155-WH 
 
No representative from Breg, Inc. was present. 
 
Mr. Wuest stated that Breg, Inc. has submitted fingerprints to Board Staff, and Board Staff 
has forwarded the fingerprints to the Central Repository for Nevada Records of Criminal 
History. 
 
Mr. Kandt requested the Board continue this matter to a future meeting. 
 
Board Action:  
 
Motion: Melissa Shake moved that this matter be continued to the December 2019 

Board meeting. 
 
Second: Gener Tejero 

24



11 

 

 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 

K. Clinician's Choice Dental Products Inc.    19-158-WH 
 
No representative from Clinician’s Choice Dental Products Inc. was present. 
 
Mr. Kandt summarized the facts of the case where Board Staff contacted Clinician’s Choice 
Dental Products Inc.in May 2019 requesting the company to comply with requirements of 
NRS 639.500 and submit a current list of officers/directors and a fingerprint card from each 
officer/director with written permission authorizing the Board to forward those fingerprints to 
the Central Repository for Nevada Records of Criminal History.  Mr. Kandt stated that Board 
Staff attempted to contact Clinician’s Choice Dental Products Inc., again in July 2019, but still 
has not received the current list of officers/directors and fingerprint cards. 
 
Mr. Kandt called Shirley Hunting as a witness. 
 
Ms. Hunting testified that she sent Clinician’s Choice Dental Products Inc. the Notice of 
Intended Action and Accusation by certified mail.  Ms. Hunting reviewed documentation 
showing that Clinician’s Choice Dental Products Inc. was properly served at their address of 
record. 
 
Mr. Kandt moved to have Exhibit 1 admitted into the record. 
 
Mr. Kandt presented Exhibit 1, documentation that Board Staff properly served Clinician’s 
Choice Dental Products Inc.  
 
Board Action:  
 
Motion: Melissa Shake moved that Board Staff properly served Clinician’s Choice 

Dental Products Inc. and that the Findings of Fact (Paragraphs 1-4) are true. 
 
Second: Robert Sullivan 
 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 
Board Action:  
 
Motion: Melissa Shake moved that Findings of Fact (Paragraphs 6-7) are true. 
 
Second: Robert Sullivan  
 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 
Board Action:  
 
Motion: Melissa Shake moved that Clinician’s Choice Dental Products Inc. shall provide 

Board Staff with a list of current officers/directors, fingerprint cards and 

25



12 

 

authorization allowing the Board to forward those fingerprints to the Central 
Repository for Nevada Records of Criminal History within twenty days.  This 
Order is not considered discipline. 

 
Second: Robert Sullivan  
 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 

L. Dental City        19-162-WH 
 
No representative from Dental City was present. 
 
Mr. Kandt stated that Dental City submitted fingerprints to Board Staff, and Board Staff has 
forwarded the fingerprints to the Central Repository for Nevada Records of Criminal History. 
 
Mr. Kandt requested the Board continue this matter to a future meeting. 
 
Board Action:  
 
Motion: Melissa Shake moved that this matter be continued to the December 2019 

Board meeting. 
 
Second: Gener Tejero 
 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 

M. GC Mogam, Inc.       19-166-WH 
 
No representative from GC Mogam, Inc. was present. 
 
Mr. Kandt summarized the facts of the case where Board Staff contacted GC Mogam, Inc.in 
May 2019 requesting the company to comply with requirements of NRS 639.500 and submit 
a current list of officers/directors and a fingerprint card from each officer/director with written 
permission authorizing the Board to forward those fingerprints to the Central Repository for 
Nevada Records of Criminal History.  Mr. Kandt stated that Board Staff attempted to contact 
GC Mogam, Inc., again in July 2019, but still has not received the current list of 
officers/directors and fingerprint cards. 
 
Mr. Kandt called Shirley Hunting as a witness. 
 
Ms. Hunting testified that she sent GC Mogam, Inc. the Notice of Intended Action and 
Accusation by certified mail.  Ms. Hunting reviewed documentation showing that GC Mogam, 
Inc. was properly served at their address of record. 
 
Mr. Kandt moved to have Exhibit 1 admitted into the record. 
 
Mr. Kandt presented Exhibit 1, documentation that Board Staff properly served GC Mogam, 
Inc. 

26



13 

 

 
Board Action:  
 
Motion: Melissa Shake moved that Board Staff properly served GC Mogam, Inc. and 

that the Findings of Fact (Paragraphs 1-4) are true. 
 
Second: Robert Sullivan 
 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 
Board Action:  
 
Motion: Melissa Shake moved that Findings of Fact (Paragraphs 6-7) are true. 
 
Second: Robert Sullivan  
 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 
Board Action:  
 
Motion: Melissa Shake moved that GC Mogam, Inc. shall provide Board Staff with a list 

of current officers/directors, fingerprint cards and authorization allowing the 
Board to forward those fingerprints to the Central Repository for Nevada 
Records of Criminal History within twenty days.  This Order is not considered 
discipline. 

 
Second: Robert Sullivan  
 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 

N. Halyard Sales, LLC       19-170-WH 
 
No representative from Halyard Sales, LLC was present. 
 
Mr. Kandt summarized the facts of the case where Board Staff contacted Halyard Sales, LLC 
in May 2019 requesting the company to comply with requirements of NRS 639.500 and 
submit a current list of officers/directors and a fingerprint card from each officer/director with 
written permission authorizing the Board to forward those fingerprints to the Central 
Repository for Nevada Records of Criminal History.  Mr. Kandt stated that Board Staff 
attempted to contact Halyard Sales, LLC, again in July 2019, but still has not received the 
current list of officers/directors and fingerprint cards. 
 
Mr. Kandt called Shirley Hunting as a witness. 
 
Ms. Hunting testified that she sent Halyard Sales, LLC the Notice of Intended Action and 
Accusation by certified mail.  Ms. Hunting reviewed documentation showing that Halyard 
Sales, LLC was properly served at their address of record. 
 

27



14 

 

Mr. Kandt moved to have Exhibit 1 admitted into the record. 
 
Mr. Kandt presented Exhibit 1, documentation that Board Staff properly served Halyard 
Sales, LLC. 
 
Board Action:  
 
Motion: Melissa Shake moved that Board Staff properly served Halyard Sales, LLC and 

that the Findings of Fact (Paragraphs 1-4) are true. 
 
Second: Robert Sullivan 
 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 
Board Action:  
 
Motion: Melissa Shake moved that Findings of Fact (Paragraphs 6-7) are true. 
 
Second: Robert Sullivan  
 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 
Board Action:  
 
Motion: Melissa Shake moved that Halyard Sales, LLC shall provide Board Staff with a 

list of current officers/directors, fingerprint cards and authorization allowing the 
Board to forward those fingerprints to the Central Repository for Nevada 
Records of Criminal History within twenty days.  This Order is not considered 
discipline. 

 
Second: Robert Sullivan  
 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 

O. Integrated Medical Systems, Inc.     19-175-WH 
 
No representative from Integrated Medical Systems, Inc. was present. 
 
Mr. Kandt summarized the facts of the case where Board Staff contacted Integrated Medical 
Systems, Inc. in May 2019 requesting the company to comply with requirements of NRS 
639.500 and submit a current list of officers/directors and a fingerprint card from each 
officer/director with written permission authorizing the Board to forward those fingerprints to 
the Central Repository for Nevada Records of Criminal History.  Mr. Kandt stated that Board 
Staff attempted to contact Integrated Medical Systems, Inc., again in July 2019, but still has 
not received the current list of officers/directors and fingerprint cards. 
 
Mr. Kandt called Shirley Hunting as a witness. 
 

28



15 

 

Ms. Hunting testified that she sent Integrated Medical Systems, Inc. the Notice of Intended 
Action and Accusation by certified mail.  Ms. Hunting reviewed documentation showing that 
Integrated Medical Systems, Inc. was properly served at their address of record. 
 
Mr. Kandt moved to have Exhibit 1 admitted into the record. 
 
Mr. Kandt presented Exhibit 1, documentation that Board Staff properly served Integrated 
Medical Systems, Inc. 
 
Board Action:  
 
Motion: Melissa Shake moved that Board Staff properly served Integrated Medical 

Systems, Inc. and that the Findings of Fact (Paragraphs 1-4) are true. 
 
Second: Robert Sullivan 
 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 
Board Action:  
 
Motion: Melissa Shake moved that Findings of Fact (Paragraphs 6-7) are true. 
 
Second: Robert Sullivan  
 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 
Board Action:  
 
Motion: Melissa Shake moved that Integrated Medical Systems, Inc. shall provide 

Board Staff with a list of current officers/directors, fingerprint cards and 
authorization allowing the Board to forward those fingerprints to the Central 
Repository for Nevada Records of Criminal History within twenty days.  This 
Order is not considered discipline. 

 
Second: Robert Sullivan  
 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 

P. National Cornerstone Healthcare Services Inc. (NCHS) 19-146-WH 
 
No representative from NCHS was present. 
 
Mr. Kandt summarized the facts of the case where Board Staff contacted NCHS in May 2019 
requesting the company to comply with requirements of NRS 639.500 and submit a current 
list of officers/directors and a fingerprint card from each officer/director with written 
permission authorizing the Board to forward those fingerprints to the Central Repository for 
Nevada Records of Criminal History.  Mr. Kandt stated that Board Staff attempted to contact 

29



16 

 

NCHS, again in July 2019, but still has not received the current list of officers/directors and 
fingerprint cards. 
 
Mr. Kandt called Shirley Hunting as a witness. 
 
Ms. Hunting testified that she sent NCHS the Notice of Intended Action and Accusation by 
certified mail.  Ms. Hunting reviewed documentation showing that NCHS was properly served 
at their address of record. 
 
Mr. Kandt moved to have Exhibit 1 admitted into the record. 
 
Mr. Kandt presented Exhibit 1, documentation that Board Staff properly served NCHS. 
 
Board Action:  
 
Motion: Melissa Shake moved that Board Staff properly served NCHS and that the 

Findings of Fact (Paragraphs 1-4) are true. 
 
Second: Robert Sullivan 
 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 
Board Action:  
 
Motion: Melissa Shake moved that Findings of Fact (Paragraphs 6-7) are true. 
 
Second: Robert Sullivan  
 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 
Board Action:  
 
Motion: Melissa Shake moved that NCHS shall provide Board Staff with a list of current 

officers/directors, fingerprint cards and authorization allowing the Board to 
forward those fingerprints to the Central Repository for Nevada Records of 
Criminal History within twenty days.  This Order is not considered discipline. 

 
Second: Robert Sullivan  
 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 

Q. Pharmaco Technology LLC     19-188-WH 
 
No representative from Pharmaco Technology LLC was present. 
 
Mr. Kandt summarized the facts of the case where Board Staff contacted Pharmaco 
Technology LLC in May 2019 requesting the company to comply with requirements of NRS 
639.500 and submit a current list of officers/directors and a fingerprint card from each 

30



17 

 

officer/director with written permission authorizing the Board to forward those fingerprints to 
the Central Repository for Nevada Records of Criminal History.  Mr. Kandt stated that Board 
Staff attempted to contact Pharmaco Technology LLC, again in July 2019, but still has not 
received the current list of officers/directors and fingerprint cards. 
 
Mr. Kandt called Shirley Hunting as a witness. 
 
Ms. Hunting testified that she sent Pharmaco Technology LLC the Notice of Intended Action 
and Accusation by certified mail.  Ms. Hunting reviewed documentation showing that 
Pharmaco Technology LLC was properly served at their address of record. 
 
Mr. Kandt moved to have Exhibit 1 admitted into the record. 
 
Mr. Kandt presented Exhibit 1, documentation that Board Staff properly served Pharmaco 
Technology LLC. 
 
Board Action:  
 
Motion: Melissa Shake moved that Board Staff properly served Pharmaco Technology 

LLC and that the Findings of Fact (Paragraphs 1-4) are true. 
 
Second: Robert Sullivan 
 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 
Board Action:  
 
Motion: Melissa Shake moved that Findings of Fact (Paragraphs 6-7) are true. 
 
Second: Robert Sullivan  
 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 
Board Action:  
 
Motion: Melissa Shake moved that Pharmaco Technology LLC shall provide Board 

Staff with a list of current officers/directors, fingerprint cards and authorization 
allowing the Board to forward those fingerprints to the Central Repository for 
Nevada Records of Criminal History within twenty days.  This Order is not 
considered discipline. 

 
Second: Robert Sullivan  
 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 

R. RLC Labs, Inc.       19-194-WH 
 

31



18 

 

Gener Tejero disclosed that his pharmacy has a contract with RLC Labs, Inc. but stated that 
he could participate in this matter fairly and without bias. 
 
No representative from RLC Labs, Inc. was present. 
 
Mr. Kandt summarized the facts of the case where Board Staff contacted RLC Labs, Inc.in 
May 2019 requesting the company to comply with requirements of NRS 639.500 and submit 
a current list of officers/directors and a fingerprint card from each officer/director with written 
permission authorizing the Board to forward those fingerprints to the Central Repository for 
Nevada Records of Criminal History.  Mr. Kandt stated that Board Staff attempted to contact 
RLC Labs, Inc., again in July 2019, but still has not received the current list of 
officers/directors and fingerprint cards. 
 
Mr. Kandt called Shirley Hunting as a witness. 
 
Ms. Hunting testified that she sent RLC Labs, Inc. the Notice of Intended Action and 
Accusation by certified mail.  Ms. Hunting reviewed documentation showing that RLC Labs, 
Inc. LLC was properly served at their address of record. 
 
Mr. Kandt moved to have Exhibit 1 admitted into the record. 
 
Mr. Kandt presented Exhibit 1, documentation that Board Staff properly served RLC Labs, 
Inc. 
 
Board Action:  
 
Motion: Melissa Shake moved that Board Staff properly served RLC Labs, Inc. and that 

the Findings of Fact (Paragraphs 1-4) are true. 
 
Second: Robert Sullivan 
 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 
Board Action:  
 
Motion: Melissa Shake moved that Findings of Fact (Paragraphs 6-7) are true. 
 
Second: Robert Sullivan  
 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 
Board Action:  
 
Motion: Melissa Shake moved that RLC Labs, Inc. shall provide Board Staff with a list 

of current officers/directors, fingerprint cards and authorization allowing the 
Board to forward those fingerprints to the Central Repository for Nevada 
Records of Criminal History within twenty days.  This Order is not considered 
discipline. 

32



19 

 

 
Second: Robert Sullivan  
 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 

S. Virbac AH Inc.       19-202-WH 
 
No representative from Virbac AH Inc. was present. 
 
Mr. Kandt summarized the facts of the case where Board Staff contacted Virbac AH Inc. in 
May 2019 requesting the company to comply with requirements of NRS 639.500 and submit 
a current list of officers/directors and a fingerprint card from each officer/director with written 
permission authorizing the Board to forward those fingerprints to the Central Repository for 
Nevada Records of Criminal History.  Mr. Kandt stated that Board Staff attempted to contact 
Virbac AH Inc., again in July 2019, but still has not received the current list of 
officers/directors and fingerprint cards. 
 
Mr. Kandt called Shirley Hunting as a witness. 
 
Ms. Hunting testified that she sent Virbac AH Inc. the Notice of Intended Action and 
Accusation by certified mail.  Ms. Hunting reviewed documentation showing that Virbac AH 
Inc. was properly served at their address of record. 
 
Mr. Kandt moved to have Exhibit 1 admitted into the record. 
 
Mr. Kandt presented Exhibit 1, documentation that Board Staff properly served RLC Labs, 
Inc. 
 
Board Action:  
 
Motion: Melissa Shake moved that Board Staff properly served Virbac AH Inc. and that 

the Findings of Fact (Paragraphs 1-4) are true. 
 
Second: Robert Sullivan 
 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 
Board Action:  
 
Motion: Melissa Shake moved that Findings of Fact (Paragraphs 6-7) are true. 
 
Second: Robert Sullivan  
 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 
Board Action:  
 

33



20 

 

Motion: Melissa Shake moved that Virbac AH Inc. shall provide Board Staff with a list of 
current officers/directors, fingerprint cards and authorization allowing the Board 
to forward those fingerprints to the Central Repository for Nevada Records of 
Criminal History within twenty days.  This Order is not considered discipline. 

 
Second: Robert Sullivan  
 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 

T. WBC Group., LLC       19-204-WH 
 
No representative from WBC Group., LLC was present. 
 
Mr. Kandt summarized the facts of the case where Board Staff contacted WBC Group., LLC 
in May 2019 requesting the company to comply with requirements of NRS 639.500 and 
submit a current list of officers/directors and a fingerprint card from each officer/director with 
written permission authorizing the Board to forward those fingerprints to the Central 
Repository for Nevada Records of Criminal History.  Mr. Kandt stated that Board Staff 
attempted to contact WBC Group., LLC,  again in July 2019, but still has not received the 
current list of officers/directors and fingerprint cards. 
 
Mr. Kandt called Shirley Hunting as a witness. 
 
Ms. Hunting testified that she sent WBC Group., LLC the Notice of Intended Action and 
Accusation by certified mail.  Ms. Hunting reviewed documentation showing that WBC 
Group., LLC was properly served at their address of record. 
 
Mr. Kandt moved to have Exhibit 1 admitted into the record. 
 
Mr. Kandt presented Exhibit 1, documentation that Board Staff properly served WBC Group., 
LLC. 
 
Board Action:  
 
Motion: Melissa Shake moved that Board Staff properly served WBC Group., LLC and 

that the Findings of Fact (Paragraphs 1-4) are true. 
 
Second: Robert Sullivan 
 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 
Board Action:  
 
Motion: Melissa Shake moved that Findings of Fact (Paragraphs 6-7) are true. 
 
Second: Robert Sullivan  
 
Action: Passed unanimously 

34



21 

 

 
Board Action:  
 
Motion: Melissa Shake moved that WBC Group., LLC shall provide Board Staff with a 

list of current officers/directors, fingerprint cards and authorization allowing the 
Board to forward those fingerprints to the Central Repository for Nevada 
Records of Criminal History within twenty days.  This Order is not considered 
discipline. 

 
Second: Robert Sullivan  
 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 

U. Westminster Pharmaceuticals, LLC    19-206-WH 
 
No representative from Westminster Pharmaceuticals, LLC was present. 
 
Mr. Kandt summarized the facts of the case where Board Staff contacted Westminster 
Pharmaceuticals, LLC in May 2019 requesting the company to comply with requirements of 
NRS 639.500 and submit a current list of officers/directors and a fingerprint card from each 
officer/director with written permission authorizing the Board to forward those fingerprints to 
the Central Repository for Nevada Records of Criminal History.  Mr. Kandt stated that Board 
Staff attempted to contact Westminster Pharmaceuticals, LLC,  again in July 2019, but still 
has not received the current list of officers/directors and fingerprint cards. 
 
Mr. Kandt stated that Westminster Pharmaceutical, LLC provided an Answer and Notice of 
Defense on October 3, 2019 stating that the company provided a Notice of Intent to 
Voluntarily Surrender Certificate of Registration Number WH02154 on May 1, 2019. 
 
Mr. Kandt requested the Board continue this matter to a future Board meeting to allow Board 
Staff to investigate Westminster Pharmaceutical, LLC’s voluntary surrender. 
 
Board Action:  
 
Motion: Melissa Shake moved to continue this matter to the December 2019 Board 

meeting. 
 
Second: Robert Sullivan 
 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 

V. X-GEN Pharmaceuticals, Inc.     19-209-WH 
 
No representative from X-GEN Pharmaceuticals, Inc was present. 
 
Mr. Kandt summarized the facts of the case where Board Staff contacted X-GEN 
Pharmaceuticals, Inc in May 2019 requesting the company to comply with requirements of 
NRS 639.500 and submit a current list of officers/directors and a fingerprint card from each 

35



22 

 

officer/director with written permission authorizing the Board to forward those fingerprints to 
the Central Repository for Nevada Records of Criminal History.  Mr. Kandt stated that Board 
Staff attempted to contact X-GEN Pharmaceuticals, Inc,  again in July 2019, but still has not 
received the current list of officers/directors and fingerprint cards. 
 
Mr. Kandt called Shirley Hunting as a witness. 
 
Ms. Hunting testified that she sent X-GEN Pharmaceuticals, Inc the Notice of Intended Action 
and Accusation by certified mail.  Ms. Hunting reviewed documentation showing that X-GEN 
Pharmaceuticals, Inc was properly served at their address of record. 
 
Mr. Kandt moved to have Exhibit 1 admitted into the record. 
 
Mr. Kandt presented Exhibit 1, documentation that Board Staff properly served X-GEN 
Pharmaceuticals, Inc. 
 
Board Action:  
 
Motion: Melissa Shake moved that Board Staff properly served X-GEN 

Pharmaceuticals, Inc and that the Findings of Fact (Paragraphs 1-4) are true. 
 
Second: Robert Sullivan 
 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 
Board Action:  
 
Motion: Melissa Shake moved that Findings of Fact (Paragraphs 6-7) are true. 
 
Second: Robert Sullivan  
 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 
Board Action:  
 
Motion: Melissa Shake moved that X-GEN Pharmaceuticals, Inc. shall provide Board 

Staff with a list of current officers/directors, fingerprint cards and authorization 
allowing the Board to forward those fingerprints to the Central Repository for 
Nevada Records of Criminal History within twenty days.  This Order is not 
considered discipline. 

 
Second: Robert Sullivan  
 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 
5. Applications for Nevada Pharmacy – Appearance 
 

A. Aaron Pharmacy Inc. – North Las Vegas, NV 

36



23 

 

 
Felix Egbase, managing pharmacist, appeared and was sworn by Presiding Officer Desmond 
prior to answering questions or offering testimony. 
 
Mr. Kandt explained that this matter was noticed to appear the following day on October 10, 
2019. 
 
Mr. Egbase waived his Right to Notice and requested the Board hear this matter on October 
9, 2019. 
 
Mr. Egbase stated that Aaron Pharmacy Inc. is a retail pharmacy that provides non-sterile 
compounding and delivery services. 
 
Mr. Egbase answered questions to the Board’s satisfaction regarding the company’s 
products and services provided, pharmacy layout, marketing and Mr. Egbase’s pharmacy 
experience. 
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Jade Jacobo moved to approve Aaron Pharmacy Inc.’s Application for Nevada 

Pharmacy License pending a positive inspection. 
 
Second: Gener Tejero 
 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 

B. Evergreen Pharmacy – Las Vegas, NV 
 
Ali Molokhia, owner, and Tae Yi, managing pharmacist, appeared and were sworn by 
Presiding Officer Desmond prior to answering questions or offering testimony. 
 
Mr. Yi stated that Evergreen Pharmacy is a retail community pharmacy located near the 
University of Nevada Las Vegas.   
 
Mr. Yi answered questions to the Board’s satisfaction regarding Evergreen Pharmacy’s 
products and services provided, policies and procedures, and his pharmacy experience. 
 
Mr. Yi clarified that Evergreen Pharmacy does not provide non-sterile compounding services 
and requested that the Board update their application. 
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Melissa Shake moved to approve Evergreen Pharmacy’s Application for 

Nevada Pharmacy pending a positive inspection and the modification to their 
application to remove non-sterile compounding services. 

 
Second: Jade Jacobo 
 

37



24 

 

Action: Passed unanimously 
 

C. Pahrump Wellness Pharmacy and Nutrition Center – Pahrump, NV 
 
Justin Curnutt, part-owner, and Thomas Rogaski, managing pharmacist, appeared and were 
sworn by Presiding Officer Desmond prior to answering questions or offering testimony. 
 
Mr. Wuest explained that Mr. Curnutt and Mr. Rogaski had appeared at a previous meeting 
regarding Pahrump Wellness Pharmacy and Nutrition Center.  At that meeting, the Board 
tabled the application at Mr. Curnutt’s request to allow time for Mr. Curnutt to meet with 
Board Staff to discuss the pharmacy layout, policies and procedures, services provided and 
ownership structure. 
 
Mr. Curnutt stated that Pahrump Wellness Pharmacy and Nutrition Center will not be 
providing any compounding services and presented documentation regarding the pharmacy’s 
services provided, Mr. Rogaski’s pharmacy experience and his work history and pharmacy 
experience. 
 
Anna Cadigan, part-owner, appeared and was sworn by Presiding Officer Desmond prior to 
answering questions and offering testimony. 
 
The Board questioned Ms. Cadigan regarding her work history and past discipline. 
 
Ms. Cadigan, Mr. Curnutt and Mr. Rogaski answered questions to the Board’s satisfaction. 
 
After discussion, the Board discussed having Board Staff inspect the pharmacy quarterly at 
the company’s expense. 
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Jade Jacobo moved to approve Pahrump Wellness Pharmacy and Nutrition 

Center pending a positive inspection.  Board Staff may inspect the pharmacy 
quarterly at the company’s expense.  Pahrump Wellness Pharmacy and 
Nutrition Center will have to appear before the Board if they choose to provide 
sterile or non-sterile compounding services. 

 
Second: Melissa Shake 
 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 
6. Applications for Out-of-State Pharmacy – Appearance  
 

A. Althea Pharmacy – Fort Mohave, AZ 
 
Abdikadir Moalim, owner, appeared and was sworn by Presiding Officer Desmond prior to 
answering questions or offering testimony. 
 
Brian Morris was present as counsel representing Althea Pharmacy. 

38



25 

 

 
Mr. Wuest stated that Althea Pharmacy is applying for an Out-of-State Pharmacy License. 
 
Mr. Morris moved to have Exhibits 1A, 1B, 1C and 1D admitted into the record. 
 
Presiding Officer Desmond admitted Exhibits 1A, 1B, 1C and 1D into the record. 
 
Mr. Morris presented documentation that Althea Pharmacy self-reported that the company 
delivered prescriptions into Nevada without proper licensure.  Mr. Morris stated that Althea 
Pharmacy has voluntarily ceased all deliveries into Nevada when they discovered the error. 
 
Mr. Morris stated that Althea Pharmacy provides pharmacy services to Laughlin, Nevada 
which is an under-served location. 
 
Mr. Morris presented letters of support from patients requesting the Board approve Althea 
Pharmacy’s application. 
 
Board discussion ensued regarding the importance of providing service to the rural areas in 
Nevada. 
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Melissa Shake moved to approve Althea Pharmacy’s Application for Out-of-

State Pharmacy License. 
 
Second: Wayne Mitchell 
 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 

B. Edgepark Medical Supplies – Twinsburg, OH 
 
William Crates, VP Quality Management, appeared and was sworn by Presiding Officer 
Desmond prior to answering questions or offering testimony. 
 
Mr. Crates explained that Edgepark Medical Supplies will provide mail service to Nevada 
patients. 
 
Mr. Crates answered questions to the Board’s satisfaction regarding the company’s prior 
discipline. 
 
Mr. Crates summarized the facts of the case where Edgepark Medical Supplies failed to 
report a change of managing pharmacist in a timely manner. 
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Jade Jacobo moved to approve Edgepark Medical Supplies’ Application for 

Out-of-State Pharmacy License. 
 

39



26 

 

Second: Melissa Shake 
 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 

C. Premier Specialty Infusion, LLC – Hoffman Estates, IL 
 
Jennifer Otto, pharmacist, appeared and was sworn by Presiding Officer Desmond prior to 
answering questions or offering testimony. 
 
Leo Basch, Inspector Nevada State Board of Pharmacy, appeared and was sworn by 
Presiding Officer Desmond prior to answering questions or offering testimony. 
 
Mr. Basch questioned Ms. Otto regarding Premier Specialty Infusion, LLC’s products and 
services provided, sterile compounding procedures and shipping procedures. 
 
Ms. Otto explained that Premier Specialty Pharmacy does offer sterile compounded 
products, but will not be sending sterile products into Nevada. 
 
Ms. Otto answered questions to the Board’s satisfaction. 
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Gener Tejero moved to approve Premier Specialty Infusion, LLC’s Application 

for Out-of-State Pharmacy License pending receipt of a Letter of Authorization 
allowing Ms. Otto to speak on behalf of the company. 

 
Second: Jade Jacobo  
 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 
7. Application for Out-of-State Compounding Pharmacy – Appearance  
 
  Custom Compounding Pharmacy (DBA) – Weatherford, TX 
 
Kendra Wright, managing pharmacist, appeared and was sworn by Presiding Officer 
Desmond prior to answering questions or offering testimony. 
 
Luis Curras, Inspector Nevada State Board of Pharmacy, appeared and was sworn by 
Presiding Officer Desmond prior to answering questions or offering testimony. 
 
Ms. Wright presented a Letter of Authorization allowing her to speak on behalf of the 
company. 
 
Ms. Wright explained that Custom Compounding Pharmacy provides sterile and non-sterile 
compounded equine products.  She stated that the pharmacy does not compound any 
human use products. 
 

40



27 

 

Mr. Curras questioned Ms. Wright regarding Custom Compounding Pharmacy’s products and 
services, clean room specifications, product testing and staff training. 
 
Mr. Curras requested Ms. Wright provide the Board with a copy of the company’s cleaning 
and shipping procedure policy and a list of their BUD sterile products and validations. 
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Gener Tejero moved to approve Custom Compounding Pharmacy’s Application 

for Out-of-State Compounding Pharmacy License pending receipt of the 
company’s cleaning and shipping procedure policy and list of their BUD sterile 
products and validations.   

 
Second: Jade Jacobo 
 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 
8. Request for Reinstatement of Pharmaceutical Technician Registration - Appearance   
 
  Ian Knickerbocker 
 
Jade Jacobo disclosed that she has worked with Mr. Knickerbocker, but stated that she could 
participate in this matter fairly and without bias. 
 
Ian Knickerbocker appeared and was sworn by Presiding Officer Desmond prior to answering 
questions or offering testimony. 
 
Mr. Knickerbocker stated that his license was revoked in March 2018.  He summarized the 
facts of a case where he knowingly and willfully participated in fraudulent transactions by 
receiving and purchasing prescriptions without a lawful prescription. 
 
The Board questioned Mr. Knickerbocker regarding why he did not appear at his hearing in 
March 2018 and what his work history has been since then. 
 
Mr. Knickerbocker stated that he moved to Florida to deal with family matters during the 
hearing.  He explained that he did not respond to Board staff because he acknowledged his 
mistake and knew he would likely have his license revoked. 
 
Mr. Knickerbocker answered questions to Board’s satisfaction regarding his employment 
history in Florida, and explained that he would like to work in pharmacy again. 
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Jade Jacobo moved to reinstate Ian Knickerbocker’s Pharmaceutical 

Technician Registration with conditions.  Mr. Knickerbocker provide a new 
application and fee.  Mr. Knickerbocker complete 4 additional CEU on ethics.  
Mr. Knickerbocker shall seek Board approval prior to working in Nevada.  Mr. 
Knickerbocker shall pay restitution to Walmart and the insurance company 

41



28 

 

billed for the fraudulent prescription, and shall disclose this matter to all 
employers. 

 
Second: Melissa Shake 
 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 
9. Applications for Controlled Substance Registration - Appearance:  

 
A. Alex K. Curtis, MD 

 
Alex Curtis appeared and was sworn by Presiding Officer Desmond prior to answering 
questions or offering testimony. 
 
Dr. Curtis disclosed on his application he suffered an injury 25 years ago and had developed 
an addiction to opiates.   
 
The Board questioned Dr. Curtis regarding his addiction, recovery and work history. 
 
Dr. Curtis answered questions to the Board’s satisfaction.  He explained that due to child 
care issues he may not be able to move to Nevada at this time, but he wanted to appear to 
resolve this matter. 
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Jade Jacobo moved to approve Alex Curtis’ Application for Controlled 

Substance Registration pending a positive evaluation with PRN-PRN. 
 
Second: Melissa Shake 
 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 

B. Rafael Mirchou, MD 
 
Melissa Shake disclosed that she fills prescriptions written by Dr. Mirchou at her pharmacy, 
but stated that she can participate in this matter fairly and without bias. 
 
Rafael Mirchou appeared and was sworn by Presiding Officer Desmond prior to answering 
questions or offering testimony. 
 
Michael Bohn was present as counsel representing Dr. Mirchou. 
 
Dr. Mirchou stated that he disclosed on his application that he accidentally allowed his 
controlled substance registration to expire in October 2018.  He stated that he did prescribe 
both testosterone and diet medications without a valid registration.   
 
Mr. Bohn explained that Dr. Mirchou currently has a pending Order to Show Cause with the 
DEA. 

42



29 

 

 
The Board expressed concern regarding Dr. Mirchou’s pending case with DEA. 
 
Presiding Officer Desmond offered Dr. Mirchou the option to table his application while he 
addresses his case with DEA. 
 
The Board tabled Rafael Mirchou’s Application for Controlled Substance Registration at his 
request. 
 

C. Robert Toledo, DO    (16-013-PD-S) 
 
Gener Tejero disclosed that he has a professional relationship with Dr. Toledo, but stated 
that could participate in this matter fairly and without bias. 
 
Robert Toledo appeared and was sworn by Presiding Officer Desmond prior to answering 
questions or offering testimony. 
 
Bridgette Kelly was present as counsel representing Dr. Toledo. 
 
Dr. Toledo summarized the facts of the case where both his controlled substance and 
practitioner dispensing registrations were revoked for allowing his unlicensed staff to use his 
authority to obtain, access, and possess controlled substances and dangerous drugs.  He 
also allowed his staff to prescribe controlled substances and dangerous drugs to patients 
using pre-signed, copied, or stamped prescriptions without a valid handwritten signature.   
 
Dr. Toledo apologized to the Board for his errors and explained that is in compliance with his 
Order.  He explained that he has no intention of practicing outside of his OBGYN practice. 
 
The Board questioned Dr. Toledo regarding his restrictions with the Nevada State Board of 
Osteopathic Medicine and future business plans. 
 
Dr. Toledo answered questions to the Board’s satisfaction. 
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Jade Jacobo moved to approve Robert Toledo’s Application for Controlled 

Substance Registration. 
 
Second: Wayne Mitchell 
 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 

D. Michael Wassef, DDS 
 
Michael Wassef appeared and was sworn by Presiding Officer Desmond prior to answering 
questions or offering testimony. 
 
Dr. Wassef disclosed past discipline in Arizona on his application. 

43



30 

 

 
Dr. Wassef explained that in 2002, he developed a dependency to hydrocodone. 
 
Dr. Wassef answered questions to the Board’s satisfaction regarding his addiction, recovery, 
past discipline and the status and conditions on his license in Arizona and Nevada. 
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Wayne Mitchell moved to approve Michael Wassef’s Application for Controlled 

Substance Registration pending a positive evaluation from PRN-PRN.  Dr. 
Wassef shall comply with his Stipulation and Order with the Nevada State 
Board of Dental Examiners and shall not prescribe controlled substances for 
more than a seven day supply.  

 
Second: Gener Tejero 
 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 
10. Applications for Out-of-State Outsourcing Facility – Appearance   
 

A. Complete Pharmacy and Medical Solutions, LLC – Miami Lake, FL 
 
This matter was continued to a future meeting. 
 

B. SterRx, LLC – Plattsburg, NY 
 
Sue Martin, supervising pharmacist, appeared and was sworn by Presiding Officer Desmond 
prior to answering questions or offering testimony. 
 
Ms. Martin stated that she would provide a Letter of Authorization allowing her to speak on 
behalf of the company. 
 
Ms. Martin stated that SterRx, LLC is an FDA registered outsourcing facility that provides 
sterile compounded products. 
 
Mr. Curras questioned Ms. Martin regarding SterRx, LLC’s past FDA inspection, and how the 
company addressed the observations noted by the FDA. 
 
Ms. Martin answered questions to the Board’s satisfaction. 
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Melissa Shake moved to approve SterRx, LLC’s Application for Out-of-State 

Outsourcing Facility pending receipt of a Letter of Authorization allowing Ms. 
Martin to speak on behalf of the company. 

 
Second: Jade Jacobo 
 

44



31 

 

Action: Passed unanimously 
 
11. Application for Pharmacist Renewal - Appearance:   
 
  Gregory G. Gaiser 
 
This matter was continued to a future meeting. 
 
12. Applications for Nevada Medical, Devices, Equipment and Gases – Appearance   
 

A. All Time Health Care – Las Vegas, NV 
 
Dailin Carmenate-Rivas, owner, and Borlive Briones, MDEG Administrator, appeared and 
were sworn by Presiding Officer Desmond prior to answering questions or offering testimony. 
 
Mr. Wuest stated that All Time Health Care appeared at a previous Board meeting.  He 
explained that the application was tabled at the company’s request to address the Board’s 
concerns regarding their MDEG Administrators qualifications. 
 
Ms. Briones stated that Angelica Gutierrez is no longer the MDEG Administrator and 
answered questions to the Board’s satisfaction regarding her work history and experience in 
the MDEG business. 
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Jade Jacobo moved to approve All Time Health Care’s Application for Nevada 

MDEG License pending the company update their application with the current 
administrator information and a positive inspection.  All Time Health Care shall 
have quarterly inspections at the company’s expense ($500 max). 

 
Second: Melissa Shake 
 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 

B. MDRX, LLC – Henderson, NV 
 
Marc Casal, pharmacist, and Becky Zawacki, MDEG Administrator, appeared and were 
sworn by Presiding Officer Desmond prior to answering questions or offering testimony. 
 
Mr. Casal stated that MDRX, LLC will be providing service to the patients of Wellcare 
Pharmacy. 
 
The Board questioned Mr. Casal and Ms. Zawacki regarding the products and services 
provided and Ms. Zawacki’s work history.  
 
After discussion, the Board expressed concern regarding Ms. Zawacki’s qualifications to be 
an MDEG administrator. 
 

45



32 

 

The Board explained that staff at MDRX would need to be certified in all products they plan 
to provide. 
 
Presiding Officer Desmond offered Mr. Casal and Ms. Zawacki the option to table MDRX, 
LLC’s application to provide time for them to address the Board’s concerns. 
 
The Board tabled MDRX, LLC’s Application at Mr. Casal’s request. 
 
13. Applications for Intern Registration - Appearance:   
 

A. David A. Bacani 
 
David Bacani appeared and was sworn by Presiding Officer Desmond prior to answering 
questions or offering testimony. 
 
Mr. Bacani stated that he disclosed discipline in another state on his intern pharmacist 
application. 
 
Mr. Bacani answered questions to the Board’s satisfaction regarding his reckless driving 
charge.  Mr. Bacani stated that he has paid his fines has complied with all the penalties 
regarding this case. 
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Melissa Shake moved to approve David Bacani’s Application for Intern 

Pharmacist License pending a positive review by PRN-PRN. 
 
Second: Jade Jacobo 
 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 

B. Austin R. Bladen 
 
Austin Bladen appeared and was sworn by Presiding Officer Desmond prior to answering 
questions or offering testimony. 
 
Mr. Bladen disclosed discipline in Utah on his intern pharmacist application. 
 
Mr. Bladen explained that he received a ticket for minor alcohol consumption when he was 
19 years old.   
 
Mr. Bladen answered questions to the Board’s satisfaction regarding his past discipline. 
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Wayne Mitchell moved to approve Austin Bladen’s Application for Intern 

Pharmacist License. 
 

46



33 

 

Second: Jade Jacobo 
 
Aye:  Jacobo, Mitchell, Sullivan, Tejero 
Nay:  Shake 
 
Action: Motion carries 
 

C. Madison J. Phuong 
 
Madison Phuong appeared and was sworn by Presiding Officer Desmond prior to answering 
questions or offering testimony. 
 
Ms. Phuong disclosed discipline in California on her intern pharmacist application. 
 
Ms. Phuong stated that she was charged with two DUI charges in 2015. 
 
Ms. Phuong presented letters of support, grades and court documents for the Board’s 
consideration. 
 
Ms. Phuong answered questions to the Board’s satisfaction regarding her past discipline and 
recovery. 
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Melissa Shake moved to approve Madison Phuong’s Application for Intern 

Pharmacist License pending a positive evaluation by PRN-PRN. 
 
Second: Wayne Mitchell 
 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 
 

D. Analeah A. Presbitero 
 
Analeah Presbitero appeared and was sworn by Presiding Officer Desmond prior to 
answering questions or offering testimony. 
 
Ms. Presbitero disclosed discipline in California on her intern pharmacist application. 
 
Ms. Presbitero stated that she was charged with driving under the influence in 2019. 
 
Ms. Presbitero answered questions to the Board’s satisfaction regarding her discipline, terms 
of her probation and recovery. 
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Jade Jacobo moved to approve Analeah Presbitero’s Application for Intern 

Pharmacist License pending a positive evaluation by PRN-PRN and that Ms. 

47



34 

 

Presbitero shall comply with all terms of her probation.  Ms. Presbitero shall 
notify the Board of any changes to her probation status. 

 
Second: Wayne Mitchell 
 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 

E. Jaimie L. Tran 
 
Jaimie Tran appeared and was sworn by Presiding Officer Desmond prior to answering 
questions or offering testimony. 
 
Ms. Tran disclosed discipline on her intern pharmacist application. 
 
Ms. Tran stated that she was arrested for recklessly endangering another person and 
harassment.  She explained that case was dismissed. 
 
Ms. Tran answered questions to the Board’s satisfaction. 

 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Melissa Shake moved to approve Jaime Tran’s Application for Intern 

Pharmacist License. 
 
Second: Jade Jacobo 
 
Action: Passed unanimously 

 
14.  Applications for Pharmaceutical Technician in Training - Appearance:  Note:  The 

Board may convene in closed session to consider the character, alleged misconduct, 
professional competence or physical or mental health of any of the below named 
parties.  

 
A. Miss K. Dailey 

 
Miss Dailey and Shirleen Rotella, Cardinal Health, appeared and were sworn by Presiding 
Officer Desmond prior to answering questions or offering testimony. 
 
Ms. Dailey disclosed multiple arrests on her application. 
 
Ms. Dailey answered the Board’s questions regarding her multiple arrests including traffic 
violations and domestic violence charges.  Ms. Dailey stated that she has learned from her 
mistakes and requested the Board approve her registration. 
 
Ms. Rotella spoke positively of Ms. Dailey’s work performance over the last year and stated 
that Cardinal Health approached Ms. Dailey for the pharmaceutical technician position. 
 
The Board expressed concern with Ms. Dailey’s past law enforcement issues.  

48



35 

 

 
Presiding Officer Desmond offered Ms. Dailey the option to table her application while she 
continues to work to improve her work history and law enforcement issues. 
 
The Board tabled Ms. Dailey’s application at her request. 
 

B. Joseph D. Repetti 
 
Melissa Shake recused from participation in this matter due to Mr. Repetti applying to work at 
Walgreens. 
 
Joseph Repetti appeared and was sworn by Presiding Officer Desmond prior to answering 
questions or offering testimony. 
 
Mr. Repetti disclosed past issues with law enforcement on his application. 
 
Mr. Repetti summarized the facts of the case where he had stolen an item from his ex and 
pawned the item. 
 
Mr. Repetti stated that he also attended meetings with Narcotics Anonymous for one year 
and still meets with his sponsor. 
 
The Board questioned Mr. Repetti regarding his addiction, recovery, work history and his 
relationship with the managing pharmacist at Walgreens. 
 
After discussion, Presiding Officer Desmond offered Mr. Repetti the option to table his 
application while he provides Board Staff with documentation regarding his conviction and 
receives an evaluation by PRN-PRN. 
 
The Board tabled Mr. Repetti’s application at his request. 
 

C. Michelle M. Shadley 
 
Michelle Shadley appeared and was sworn by Presiding Officer Desmond prior to answering 
questions or offering testimony. 
 
Ms. Shadley disclosed past law enforcement issues on her application. 
 
Ms. Shadley explained that in August 2004, she had stolen clothing from Target.  She 
explained that this matter was heard and she was ordered to do community services. 
 
The Board questioned Ms. Shadley regarding her case and work history. 
 
Ms. Shadley answered questions to the Board’s satisfaction. 
 
Board Action: 
 

49



36 

 

Motion: Melissa Shake moved to approve Michelle Shadley’s Application for 
Pharmaceutical Technician in Training Registration. 

 
Second: Wayne Mitchell 
 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 
15. Applications for Pharmaceutical Technician – Appearance:  
 

A. Deborah A. Furlong 
 
Deborah Furlong appeared and was sworn by Presiding Officer Desmond prior to answering 
questions or offering testimony. 
 
Ms. Furlong disclosed past issues with law enforcement on her application. 
 
Ms. Furlong stated that in July 2003, she was arrested for driving under the influence.  She 
explained that she has paid all fines and has taken the required courses to comply with her 
Order regarding this matter.   
 
Ms. Furlong explained that she was also arrested in February 2006, on a warrant for a check 
she wrote in 2003 that did not clear.  She explained that she has attended all classes and 
paid all fines regarding this matter as well. 
 
Ms. Furlong stated that she has been a pharmaceutical technician in Arizona and would like 
to be licensed in Nevada. 
 
Ms. Furlong answered questions to the Board’s satisfaction regarding her past cases and 
work history. 
 
Board Action:  
 
Motion: Jade Jacobo move to approve Deborah Furlong’s Application for 

Pharmaceutical Technician. 
 
Second: Melissa Shake 
 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 
 

B. Danny H. Ramos 
 
Danny Ramos appeared and was sworn by Presiding Officer Desmond prior to answering 
questions or offering testimony. 
 
Mr. Ramos disclosed on his application that he was charged for driving under the influence in 
2013.  Mr. Ramos summarized the facts of a case in 2015 that resulted in a five year 
probation on his pharmaceutical technician registration in California. 

50



37 

 

 
The Board questioned Mr. Ramos regarding his work history and the conditions on his 
pharmaceutical technician registration in California. 
 
Mr. Ramos answered questions to the Board’s satisfaction. 
 
Board Action:  
 
Motion: Jade Jacobo moved to approve Danny Ramos’ Application for Pharmaceutical 

Technician Registration pending a positive evaluation by PRN-PRN.  Mr. 
Ramos’ Pharmaceutical Technician Registration shall be placed on probation to 
match the California State Board of Pharmacy’s Order until July 2020. 

 
Second: Melissa Shake 
 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 
16. Application for Dispensing Technician in Training - Appearance: 
 
  Cassandra Sheffey 
 
Cassandra Sheffey appeared and was sworn by Presiding Officer Desmond prior to 
answering questions or offering testimony. 
 
Mr. Wuest provided background information that Ms. Sheffey had disclosed past law 
enforcement issues on her application for dispensing technician in training, but did not 
disclose this information on her previously completed pharmaceutical technician registration 
renewal application. 
 
Ms. Sheffey answered questions to the Board’s satisfaction regarding her 2016 DUI charge, 
recovery and work history. 
 
After discussion, Ms. Sheffey disclosed that she had completed the wrong form regarding 
this matter. 
 
The Board tabled this matter to allow Ms. Sheffey to complete the correct forms and to 
properly notice this matter for a future Board meeting.  
 
17. Application for Pharmacist Registration by Reciprocation - Appearance:   

 
  Sheila D. Colon 
 
Sheila Colon appeared and was sworn by Presiding Officer Desmond prior to answering 
questions or offering testimony. 
 
Ms. Colon disclosed discipline in California on her application. 
 

51



38 

 

Ms. Colon answered questions to the Board’s satisfaction regarding two cases with the 
California Board of Pharmacy.  
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Jade Jacobo moved to approve Sheila Colon’s Application for Pharmacist 

Registration by Reciprocation. 
 
Second: Wayne Mitchell 
 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 
18. Appearance Request:  Rob Geddes, Albertsons-Safeway 

Discussion of whether, under existing law, a pharmacist may administer medications, 
including injectables, in a pharmacy pursuant to a valid prescription under NRS 
639.0124, NRS 639.0065 or other provision(s) of Nevada law.  

 
Mr. Wuest provided background information. 
 
Rob Geddes, Albertsons-Safeway, appeared and discussed with the Board if pharmacists 
are allowed to administer medications, including injectables, in a pharmacy pursuant to a 
valid prescription. 
 
Presiding Officer Desmond opened the Public Comment. 
 
Liz MacMenamin, RAN, appeared and expressed support of pharmacists administering 
medications in a pharmacy pursuant to a valid prescription.   
 
Cat O’Mara, NSMA, appeared and requested that the Board provide information to the public 
to clarify if pharmacists may provide this service. 
 
Board discussion ensued regarding current practices in pharmacy regarding collaborative 
practice and administration of medications. 
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Gener Tejero moved to bring this matter back to Workshop with language 

allowing a pharmacist to administer medications in a pharmacy pursuant to a 
valid prescription. 

 
Second: Jade Jacobo 
 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 
19. Discussion and Determination Presentation:  Joint Petition for Rulemaking pursuant to 
NAC 639.140 from MedAvail Technologies, Inc. and CareMore Health, requesting the Board 
to initiate the rulemaking process to amend its regulations, including NAC 639.715 et al., to 

52



39 

 

allow for dispensing from automated dispensing systems at the point of care, including in 
clinics and other places where healthcare services are provided. 
 
Mr. Wuest explained that Board Staff is currently going through a financial audit and that the 
report would be available at the next meeting. 
 
Ed Rickert, Seema Siddiqui, and Saeed Akhtar appeared and requested the Board consider 
amending the regulations to allow for dispensing from automated dispensing systems at 
clinics and other places where healthcare services are provided. 
 
Ms. Siddiqui presented information regarding MedAvail Technologies, Inc.’s dispensing 
machine and discussed how the system is working in other states. 
 
Board discussion ensued regarding the current regulations and statutes and how this 
business model relates to Nevada Law. 
 
Ms. Siddiqui and Dr. Akhtar answered questions to the Board’s satisfaction regarding the 
medications provided in the dispensing machine, pharmacist supervision and security. 
 
The Board requested that Board Staff draft proposed language and bring this matter back to 
Workshop. 
 
20. General Counsel Report 
 
General Counsel had nothing further to report. 

 
21. Executive Secretary Report: 
 

A. Financial Report 
 B. Temporary Licenses 

C. Staff Activities: 
1. Meetings with Other Health Care Boards 
2. Nevada Physician Society - Dave 
3. Nevada Physician Society - Darla 
4. FDA Compounding Meeting 
5. Open Beds Meeting 

D. Report to Board: 
1. Licensing software update  

 E. Board Related News: 
1. NABP District Meeting – Boise 
2. Student Megan Flandro 

 
Mr. Wuest introduced Megan Flandro.  Ms. Flandro is a pharmacy student at Idaho State 
University and is doing a six week rotation with the Nevada State Board of Pharmacy. 
 
 F. Licensing Activities Report: 

1. PMP Integration  
2. Renewals  

53



40 

 

 
Public Comment October 9, 2019 5:20 PM 
 
There was no public comment. 
 
Public Comment October 10, 2019 9:00 AM 
 
There was no public comment. 
 
22. Notice of Proposed Regulation Workshop Pursuant to NRS 233B.061(2)  

 

1. Amendment of Nevada Administrative Code (NAC) 453.510:  Schedule 1.  The 
proposed amendment to NAC 453.510 will add Etizolam, which is a thienodiazepine 
and is chemically related to benzodiazepines, to the controlled substances listed in 
Schedule 1. 

 
Megan Flandro provided background information. 
 
Ms. Flandro stated that the proposed language would add Etizolam to the list of Schedule 1 
drugs. 
 
Ms. Flandro summarized the side effects of Etizolam and the uses of Etizolam in other 
countries.   
 
Presiding Officer Desmond opened the Public Comment. 
 
There was no public comment. 
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Melissa Shake moved to adopt the proposed language and move forward to 

Public Hearing. 
 
Second: Jade Jacobo 
 
Action: Passed unanimously 

 

2. Amendment of Nevada Administrative Code (NAC) Chapter 639.  The proposed 
amendment will add a new regulation authorizing the State Board of Pharmacy to 
require the holder of any certificate, license or permit issued by the Board to report a 
conviction of any crime, and to report any administrative action, whether completed or 
pending, against the holder by any professional licensing board or agency of this state 
or another state, to the Executive Secretary of the Board within 30 days.  The 
proposed amendment will also authorize the Executive Secretary of the Board on 
behalf of the Board to require the holder of any certificate, license or permit issued by 
the Board who reports a conviction or an administrative action to appear personally 
before the Board prior to the renewal of the certificate, license or permit.  

 

54



41 

 

Mr. Kandt provided background information. 
 
Presiding Officer Desmond opened the Public Comment. 
 
Liz MacMenamin, RAN, appeared and expressed concern regarding requiring licensees to 
report pending administrative actions.   
 
Board discussion ensued regarding the benefits and risks of requiring licensees to report 
pending administrative actions. 
 
Ms. Shake requested a modification to Section 2, to add Federal Agencies to the list, and to 
remove the requirement to report pending administrative actions. 
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Melissa Shake moved to adopt the proposed language with modifications to 

add Federal Agencies to Section 2 and to remove the requirement to report 
pending administrative actions. 

 
Second: Wayne Mitchell 
 
Aye:  Mitchell, Shake, Tejero 
Nay:  Jacobo, Sullivan 
 
Presiding Officer Desmond offered an aye vote. 
 
Action: Motion carries 
 
23. Date and Location of Next Scheduled Board Meeting: 
 
  December 4-5, 2019 – Reno, Nevada 
 
Gener Tejero and Jade Jacobo were not present for this matter. 
 
24. Public Comment October 10, 2019 3:00 PM 
 
There was no public comment. 

55



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5

56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140

kmangosing
Stamp



141



142



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

6

143



 
MATRIX GUIDELINE FOR 
DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS  

 
      1st Action  2nd Action  3rd Action 
 

 
Non ingested error    Letter   Letter   Hearing  
         Counseling CE + 
No counseling    $750.00  $1000.00  Hearing  
 
Attorney Fees and Costs                Actual   Actual    Actual   
 
Ingested no potential harm   $500.00  $1000.00  Hearing  
 
Ingested with potential harm 
or adverse outcomes   $1000.00  Hearing  Hearing  
 
Ingested with negative outcome   
or patient discomfort.    
No institution intervention   Hearing  Hearing  Hearing  
 
Ingested with significant negative   
health circumstance.    
With institution admit   Hearing  Hearing  Hearing  
 
Ingested with death related to 
inappropriate drug therapy   Hearing  Hearing  Hearing 

 
The investigative committee will review each case individually and may recommend a board 
hearing, particularly with mitigating circumstances such as inappropriate technician 
involvement or pharmacist malfeasance. 
 
In certain cases with ingested errors and significant negative health circumstances requiring 
institutional care, the investigative committee recommendation will be a board hearing. 
 
In all death cases resulting from inappropriate drug therapy a board hearing will occur. 
 
Attorney fees and costs may be added in contested disciplinary actions requiring extensive 
attorney preparation and presentation and are not described in the above matrix. 
 
The board has directed that ownership may be charged in disciplinary cases.  In non-ingested 
errors copies of admonition letters will be sent to management.  Accumulative actions for 
ownership monitoring will be based upon a 3 year period.  All actions including non-ingested 
errors will be given a case number and monitored. 
 
The Board has the authority to fine from $0.00 to $10,000 for each Cause of Action. 
 
          Updated May 2019 

144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

6A

152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



164



165



166



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

6B

167



168



169



170



171



172



173



174



175



176



177



178



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

6C

179



180



181



182



183



184



185



186



187



188



189



190



191



192



193



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

6D

194



195



196



197



198



199



200



201



202



203



204



205



206



207



208



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

6E

209



210



211



212



213



214



215



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

6F

216



217



218



219



220



221



222



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

6G

223



224



225



226



227



228



229



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

6H

230



231



232



233



234



235



236



237



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

7

238



239



240



241



242



243



244



245



246



247



248



249



250



251



252



253



254



255



256



257



258



259



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

8

260



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

8A

261



262



263



264



265



266



267



268



269



270



271



272



273



274



275



276



277



278



279



280



281



282



283



284



285



286



287



288



289



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

8B

290



291



292



293



294



295



296



297



298



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

8C

299



300



301



302



303



304



305



306



307



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

9

308



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

9A

309



310



311



312



313



314



315



316



317



318



319



320



321



322



323



324



325



326



327



328



329



330



331



332



333



334



335



336



337



338



339



340



341



342



343



344



345



346



347



348



349



350



351



352



353



354



355



356



357



358



359



360



361



362



363



364



365



366



367



368



369



370



371



372



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

9B

373



374



375



376



377



378



379



380



381



382



383



384



385



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

9C

386



387



388



389



390



391



392



393



394



395



396



397



398



399



400



401



402



403



404



405



406



407



408



409



410



411



412



413



414



415



416



417



418



419



420



421



422



423



424



425



426



427



428



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

9D

429



430



431



432



433



434



435



436



437



438



439



440



441



442



443



444



445



446



447



448



449



450



451



452



453



454



455



456



457



458



459



460



461



462



463



464



465



466



467



468



469



470



471



472



473



474



475



476



477



478



479



480



481



482



483



484



485



486



487



488



489



490



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

10

491



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

10A

492



493



494



495



496



497



498



499



500



501



502



503



504



505



506



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

10B

507



508



509



510



511



512



513



514



515



516



517



518



519



520



521



522



523



524



525



526



527



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

11

528



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

11A

529



530



531



532



533



534



535



536



537



538



539



540



541



542



543



544



545



546



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

11B

547



548



549



550



551



552



553



554



555



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

11C

556



557



558



559



560



561



562



563



564



565



566



567



568



569



570



571



572



573



574



575



576



577



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

12

578



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

12A

579



580



581



582



583



584



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

12B

585



586



587



588



589



590



591



592



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

13

593



594



595



596



597



598



599



600



601



602



603



604



605



606



607



608



609



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

14

610



611



612



613



614



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

15

615



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

15A

616



617



618



619



620



621



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

15B

622



623



624



625



626



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

15C

627



628



629



630



631



632



633



634



635



636



637



638



639



640



641



642



643



644



645



646



647



648



649



650



651



652



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

16

653



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

16A

654



655



656



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

16B

657



658



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

17

659



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

18

660



661



662



663



664



665



666



667



668



669



670



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

19

671



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

20

672



673



674



675



676



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

21

677



678



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

22

679



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

22A

680



681



682



683



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

22B

684



685



686



687



688



689



690



691



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

22C

692



693



694



695



696



697



698



699



700



701



702



703



704



705



706



707



708



709



710



711



712



713



714



715



716



717



718



719



720



721



722



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

22D

723



724



725



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

22E

726



727



728



729



730



731



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

22F

732



733



734



735



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

22G

736



737



738



739



740



741



742



743



744



745



746



747



748



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

22H

749



750



751



752



753



754



755



756



757



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

22I

758



759



760



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

23

761



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

24

 

762



763



764



765



766



767



768



769



770



771



772



773



774



775



776



777



778



779



780



781



782



783



784



785



786



787



788



789



790



791



792



793



794



795



796



797



798



799



800



801



802



803



804



805



806



807



808



809



810



811



812



813



814


	Cover
	December 2019 Agenda
	3. Discussion- Criteria for placement of items on agenda
	4. Approval of October 9-10, 2019, Minutes
	5. December 2019 Consent Agenda
	A.	Cottrill’s Pharmacy – Orchard Park, NY
	B.	CVS/specialty #48023 – Tampa, FL
	C.	CVS/specialty #48036 – Milford, MA
	D.	CVS/specialty #48040 – Troy, MI
	E.	CVS/specialty #48045 – Raleigh, NC
	F.	Deeflat Pharmacy – Bullhead City, AZ
	G.	F&M Specialty Pharmacy – Flowood, MS
	H.	Gordon’s Hometown Pharmacy – Pooler, GA
	I.	Publix Pharmacy #3213 – Orlando, FL
	J.	Tarrytown Expocare, LLC – Austin, TX
	K.	vitaCare Prescription Services, Inc. – Boca Raton, FL
		L.	Zeus Rx – Forney, TX
	M.	Core Pharmacy – Valley View, OH
	N.	Gibson’s Pharmacy – Murray, UT
	O.	Sincerus Florida LLC – Pompano, FL
	P.	Walgreens #16569 – Lone Tree, CO
	Q.	Cardinal Health 200, LLC – Riverside, CA
	R.	Choice Medical Healthcare Inc. – Salt Lake City, UT
	S.	MedSupply – Fresno, CA
	T.	Northland AAC – Tempe, AZ
	U.	Numotion – Sandy, UT
	V.	SRW Industries Inc. – Lake Zurich, IL
	W.	Acrotech Biopharma LLC – East Windsor, NJ
	X.	Adhera Therapeutics, Inc. – Durham, NC	
	Y.	Advanced Pharmaceuticals, LLC – Ocean Springs, MS
	Z.	Amneal Pharmaceuticals LLC – Glasgow, NY
	AA.	Anika Therapeutics, Inc. – Bedford, MA
	BB.	Array BioPharma Inc. – Boulder, CO	
	CC.	AuroMedics Pharma LLC – East Windsor, NJ
	DD.	Avanir Pharmaceuticals, Inc. – Aliso Viejo, CA
	EE.	Avion Pharmaceuticals, LLC – Alpharetta, GA
	FF.	BE Pharmaceuticals, Inc. – Cary, NC
	GG.	Becton, Dickinson and Company – Franklin Lakes, NJ
	HH.	Bluebird Bio, Inc. – Cambridge, MA
	II.	Bonita Pharmaceuticals LLC – Westland, MI
	JJ.	Breckenridge Pharmaceutical, Inc. – Berlin, CT
	KK.	Chewy Wholesale LLC – Louisville, KY
	LL.	Cochran Wholesale Pharmaceuticals LLC – Monroe, GA
	MM.	Compass Health Brands Corp. – Brookpark, OH
	NN.	Collegium Pharmaceutical, Inc. – Stoughton, MA
	OO.	Cypress, Macoven, Hawthorn – Morristown, NJ
	PP.	DHL Supply Chain (USA) – Export, PA
	QQ.	DHL Supply Chain (USA) – Manchester, PA
	RR.	Durbin USA – Ocean Springs, MS	
	SS.	Expeditors International of Washington, Inc. – Surprise, AZ
	TT.	Fisher BioServices, Inc. – Frederick, MD
	UU.	Foamix Pharmaceuticals Inc. – Bridgewater, NJ
	VV.	Focus Laboratories, Inc. – North Little Rock, AR
	WW.	GHR Second Source Rx and OR 2SRX – Earth City, MO
	XX.	Global Blood Therapeutics Inc.  – South San Francisco, CA
	YY.	Invicta Wholesale Supplies, LLC – Tukwila, WA
	ZZ.	Kenco Logistic Services, LLC – Roswell, GA
	AAA.	Lohxa, LLC – Worcester, WA
	BBB.	McKesson Medical-Surgical Inc. – Bethlehem, PA
	CCC.	Medline Industries, Inc. – Glen Falls, NY
	DDD.	Micro Labs USA, Inc. – Basking Ridge, NJ
	EEE.	Novadoz Pharmaceuticals, LLC – Piscataway, NJ
	FFF.	Norbrook Inc. – Lenexa, KS
	GGG.	Novo Nordisk Pharma Inc. – Plainsboro, NJ
	HHH.	O&M Halyard, Inc. – Southaven, MS
	III.	Patheon Manufacturing Services LLC – Greenville, NC
	JJJ.	PARI Respiratory Equipment, Inc. – Midlothian, VA
	KKK.	Perrigo Pharmaceuticals Company – Allegan, MI
	LLL.	Persion Pharmaceuticals LLC – Morristown, NJ
	MMM.	Pharmaceutical Associates, Inc. – Greenville, SC
	NNN.	Pharmsource, LLC – Brunswick, GA
	OOO.	PI Services, LLC – Erie, PA
	PPP.	Progenics Pharmaceuticals, Inc. – Somerset, NJ	
	QQQ.	Quantum Rx – Redford, MI
	RRR.	QOL Medical – Vero Beach, FL
	SSS.	Republic Pharmaceuticals – Ann Arbor, MI
	TTT.	Retrophin, Inc. – San Diego, CA
	UUU.	Rising Pharma Holdings, Inc. – Somerset, NJ
	VVV.	RxCrossroads 3PL LLC – Fairdale, KY
	WWW.	RxCrossroads 3PL LLC – Louisville, KY
	XXX.	Safco Dental Supply LLC – Buffalo Grove, IL
	YYY.	Safeway Distributors Inc. – Davie, FL
	ZZZ.	Scott’s Dental Supply, LLC – Fife, WA
	AAAA.	Seattle Genetics, Inc. – Bothwell, WA
	BBBB.	Spectrum Pharmaceuticals, Inc. – Irvine, CA
	CCCC.	Strides Pharma, Inc. – East Brunswick, NJ
	DDDD.	Tricida, Inc.  – South San Francisco, CA
	EEEE.	Tusker Medical Inc. – Menlo Park, CA
	FFFF.	UroGen Pharma Inc. – New York, NY
	GGGG.	Viela Bio, Inc. – Gaithersburg, MD	
	HHHH.	Rx2U, LLC – Las Vegas, NV

	6. December 2019 Discipline
	6A. Markey Wilson, PA (19-032-CS-S)
	6B. Simplot Western Stockmens (19-216-WH)
	6C. Westminster Pharmaceuticals, LLC (19-206-WH)
	6D. Order to Show Cause: Jaime Cordoba-Hernandez (17-070-RPH-S)
	6E. Order to Show Cause: Clinician's Choice Dental Product (19-158-WH)
	6F. Order to Show Cause: Halyard Sales, LLC (19-170-WH)
	6G. Order to Show Cause: Pharmaco Technology LLC (19-188-WH)
	6H. Order to Show Cause: RLC Labs, Inc (19-194-WH)

	7. Application for Nevada Wholesaler- Hilco - North Las Vegas, NV
	8. Applications for Nevada Pharmacy
	8A. Atlantic Pharmacy- North Las Vegas, NV
	8B. PAM Specialty Pharmacy of Las Vegas- Las Vegas, NV
	8C. PAM Specialty Pharmacy of Sparks- Sparks, NV

	9. Applications for Out-of- State Pharmacy
	9A. Catalent Pharmacy Services (PHL) - Philadelphia, PA
	9B. DirectRx Pharmacy- Troy, MI
	9C. Empower Pharmacy- Houston, TX
	9D. Golden Gate Pharmacy Services- Novato, CA

	10. Applications for Out-of-State Compounding Pharmacy
	10A. Advanced Infusion Solutions - Dallas, TX
	10B. Omnicare of Cerritos- Cerritos, CA

	11. Applications for Out-of-State Outsourcing Facility
	11A. Pine Pharmaceuticals, Inc. - Tonawanda, NY
	11B. QuVa Pharma, Inc. - Bloomsbury, NJ
	11C. RXQ Compounding LLC - Albany, OH

	12. Applications for Controlled Substance Registration
	12A. Kristin Hestdalen, MD
	12B. Maryanne Phillips, MD

	13. Application for Pharmacist Registration by Examination - James R. Dexter
	14. Request for Pharmacist Applicant to Retake the NAPLEX Exam - Jimmy Nguyen
	15. Applications for Pharmacist Renewal
	15A. Carl Black
	15B. J. Patrick Kim
	15C. Nayan K. Patel

	16. Applications for Pharmaceutical Technician in Training
	16A. Michael A. Brand
	16B. Justin R. Ross

	17. Presentation regarding continuing education program "Best Practices and Tools for Prescribing Controlled Substances"
	18. Request to Engage in the Practice of Pharmacy at a Site Other Than a Licensed Pharmacy - KayLynn Bowman, R.Ph
	19. General Counsel Report
	20. Executive Secretary Report
	21. Workshop - Review of criminal history pursuant to AB 319
	22. Public Hearing
	22A. Schedule V (R149-16)
	22B. Schedule IV (R150-16)
	22C. Dispensing Practitioner FQHC (R004-19)
	22D. Payment of fees (R033-19)
	22E. PMP delegates (R035-19)
	22F. Inactive Status (R071-19)
	22G. Prior criminal convictions (R072-19)
	22H. Forwarding of informaiton between pharmacies (R008-19)
	22I. Reporting to National Practitioner Data Bank (R070-19)

	24. Application for Nevada MDEG - Foothill Medical Supply, LLC



